Hon. Kenneth J. Hopkins *Mayor*

Jason M. Pezzullo, MCP, MPA, AICP Chair / City Planning Director



James Woyciechowski Fire Marshal

> David Rodio Building Official

Justin Mateus P.E. Public Works Director

DEVELOPMENT PLAN REVIEW COMMITTEE

Room 309

Stephen Mulcahy DPW: Traffic Safety Division

(vote taken)

City Hall – 3rd Floor, Room 309 869 Park Avenue – Cranston, Rhode Island 02910

<u>MINUTES</u> CITY HALL – 3rd FLOOR, COUNCIL CHAMBER 9:30AM – WEDNESDAY, MARCH 6, 2024

1. Call to Order

Chairman Jason Pezzullo called the Development Plan Review Committee meeting to order at 9:40 a.m. in the City Council chamber.

The following members were in attendance for the meeting: Justin Mateus – DPW Director, Stephen Mulcahy –Traffic Safety Manager, Jason M. Pezzullo – Planning Director, and Stanley Pikul – Zoning Official.

The following Planning Department staff members were in attendance: Asst. Planning Director, Kenneth R. Kirkland.

2. Approval of Minutes

2.7.24 DPRC Meeting

Due to staffing constraints, the 2.7.24 meeting minutes were not immediately available for review and subsequent vote. The 2.7.24 minutes will be reviewed at the following meeting of the DPRC: 3.6.24.

3.	" <u>McDonald's</u> "	Pre-Application Conference (no vot	e taken)	
	Location:	923 Cranston Street AP 7/1, Lot 632		
	Zoning District.	C-5 (Heavy Business / Industry)		
	Applicant / Owner:	McDonald's Corporation / McDonald's Real Estate Company		
	Proposal:	Demolition and rebuild of the existing McDonald's restaurant and to rewor	of the existing McDonald's restaurant and to rework certain	
		areas of the parking and drive-thru areas.		

A member of the applicant's team introduced the proposal with site context. The applicant seeks to demolish and rebuild an existing McDonald's restaurant in the existing footprint, and to alter the existing traffic and circulation on-site to improve traffic flow. The site was previously approved for renovations by the DPRC in 2019.

The applicant is proposing a reduction in parking from 50 spaces to 44, which exceeds the 37 required spaces per City code. The applicant seeks relief for the speaker setback in a residential zone, currently 62.4 ft. from the nearest residential area, but a second drive-thru lane is proposed with a speaker located 50.5 ft. from the nearest residential property line, requiring relief from the 100 ft. setback requirement per City code. The applicant also seeks relief to relocate the exit and entrance locations on Webster Avenue. The proposed addition of a second drive-thru lane requires relocation of the exit and entrance lanes, requiring zoning relief as it obstructs a residential area, owned by the applicant.

Chairman Pezzullo invited members of the DPRC to discuss the application as presented.

Mr. Pikul inquired about adherence to the setbacks. A member of the applicant's team stated that the building itself conforms to setback requirements, only the landscape buffer on-site is pre-existing non-conforming to setback requirements. Mr. Pikul also inquired about signage on the property. A member of the applicant's team stated that the existing golden arches will remain in place, and any additional signage will conform to code.

Mr. Rodio inquired about the location of the dumpster receptacles. Mr. Pezzullo pointed out where the dumpster receptacle would be located.

Mr. Pezzullo inquired when the applicant intends to submit this application to the Plan Commission. The applicant inquired about the timeline for review. Mr. Pezzullo stated that this application would be reviewed by the Plan Commission with feedback from the DPRC. The final plan will be reviewed administratively.

No further discussion was had by members of the DPRC.

As this was a pre-application discussion, no vote was taken.

4.	" <u>Salon Mall</u> "	Jurisdictional Review / Pre-Application Conference (no vote taken)
	Location: Zoning District. Applicant / Owner: Proposal:	 495 Atwood Avenue AP 12/4, Lot 3116 M-1 (Restricted Industry) 495 Investments, LLC Interior renovations and conversion of a pre-existing non-conforming doctor's office into a personal care services facility, (salon mall).

Mr. Pezzullo stated that the applicant was not present for the conference. Chairman Pezzullo shared concern with the Committee about the proposal, specifically regarding the proposed use and the limited, allocated parking spaces. Mr. Pikul shared concern over the parking requirement, per City code.

Chairman Pezzullo stated that the parking scheme is irrational for the specified use. Mr. Pezzullo stated that due to the applicant's absence at the hearing, the conference should be held for further review at a subsequent meeting.

As this was a pre-application discussion, no vote was taken.

5. Adjournment (Next Meeting | March 20, 2024)

Upon motion made by Mr. Pikul, and seconded by Mr. Woyciechowski, the Development Plan Review Committee voted unanimously (4-0) to adjourn the meeting at 9:52 a.m.

(vote taken)